
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
DOCUMENT PACK

Date: Friday, 3 July 2020

You can view the 
agenda online by using 
a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below:

REPORTS REQUIRING A DECISION
1. Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 (Pages 3 - 18)

2. Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2020/21 (Pages 19 - 24)

INFORMATION ONLY REPORTS
3. Audit Plan (External Audit) (Pages 25 - 28)

4. Treasury Management Update (Pages 29 - 38)

5. Risk Management Update (Pages 39 - 62)

6. Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 63 - 84)

7. Work Programme (Pages 85 - 86)

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee
Councillor E Thrane (Chair) Councillor O Cross (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Collins Councillor J Douglas
Councillor D Kerr Councillor E Longden
Councillor R Quinn Councillor K Savage
Councillor G Wharmby Mr P Grant
Mr M Thomas M J Scampion

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee

3rd July 2020

   Appendix A (attached) – Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20

1. Reason for the Report

1.1. The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management performance in 2019/20 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and generally accepted good practice.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20 is recommended to Council 
for approval.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury management 
activities for the year.

3.2. The Annual Treasury Management Report for 2019/20 considers the following 
areas:

 The Treasury Management Strategy adopted for 2019/20 and the economic 
environment during the year;

 The current treasury position, highlighting the Council’s borrowing and lending 
position at the year end;

 The Council’s capital expenditure, overall borrowing need and borrowing outturn 
during 2019/20;

TITLE: Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20

EXECUTIVE Cllr Alan Barrow – 
COUNCILLOR: Executive Councillor for Corporate Services 

and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER(S): Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance
Emily Bennetts –   Finance Business Partner

WARD: Non-specific

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 Performance measurements, which look at the returns achieved during the year 
by the Council on its overall investments;

 The Council’s investment portfolio, which sets out for Members how and where 
the Council has invested its money during the year;

 The interest yield for 2019/20; and
 Compliance with Prudential Indicators, showing the outturn against those 

Indicators formally adopted in the 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy.

3.3. The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer confirms that borrowing was only 
undertaken for a capital purpose and the statutory borrowing limit (the authorised 
limit) was not breached.

3.4. The main headlines include:

 Capital expenditure in 2019/20 totalled £7.3million. This created a borrowing 
requirement of £2.8million wholly applicable to General Fund capital 
expenditure.

 Total debt at 31st March 2020 amounted to £66.8million including loans from 
Public Works Loan Board and Market Loans. No new external borrowing or 
refinancing took place; nor was there any debt rescheduling.

 Overall borrowing costs were £148,590 underspent against the budget as 
internal borrowing continued. This was split between the General Fund 
£123,480 and HRA £25,110.

 The average daily investment during 2019/20 was £21 million invested with a 
total of 11 institutions, yielding £174,400 in investment income. £14,360 was 
also received in interest payments from the loan to Buxton Crescent Heritage 
Trust. There was a shortfall against the investment income budget of £36,500.

 The average return achieved by the Council on its investment portfolio for the 
year was 0.81%, which compares favourably to short-term industry benchmarks.

 Year-end investments totalled £20.5million all internally managed by the 
Council’s Treasury Management Team.

 The outturn against the treasury and prudential indicators set within the 
Treasury Strategy 2019/20 is shown in Annex B.

Page 4



4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s main 
priorities.

5. Options

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak Borough 
Council for 2019/20. As such it is a statement of fact and there are no options to 
consider.

6. Implications

6.1. Community Safety – (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None

6.2. Workforce

None

6.3. Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and 
Equality Policies.

6.4. Financial Considerations

Included throughout the report.

6.5. Legal

None

6.6. Sustainability

None

6.7. Internal and External Consultation

None

6.8. Risk Assessment

There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury 
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or deposits. For 
this reason, the Council engages the services of external Treasury Management 
advisors, Link Asset Services (‘Link’).

Page 5



Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s 
formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That Strategy includes a number 
of risk management features such as the overriding priority that security of deposit 
takes precedence over return on investment.

Claire Hazeldene
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contacts
‘Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2019/20’ 
Audit & Regulatory Committee Feb 19

‘Treasury Management – Governance 
and Scrutiny Arrangements’
Audit & Regulatory Committee Sept 09

Finance and Procurement, Town 
Hall, Buxton

Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186

Page 6



Appendix A

Annual Treasury Management 
Report

2019/20

June 2020

Page 7



1. Introduction and Background

1.1. The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury management activities 
and the outturn against prudential and treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report 
meets the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

1.2. The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and 
scrutiny of Treasury Management policy and activities. This report provides details of 
the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s 
policies previously approved by Members.  

1.3. This report covers:
 Strategy for 2019/20
 Economy in 2019/20 
 The Council’s treasury position as at 31st March 2020
 Capital Expenditure and the Overall Borrowing Need
 Borrowing Outturn 
 Investment Performance 
 Investment Portfolio & Yield
 Compliance with Prudential Indicators

2. The 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy & Economic Conditions

2.1. The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 
2019/20 was based on the assumption of a Brexit deal being agreed between 
Parliament and the EU in the first quarter of 2019 and included a rise in the Bank of 
England base rate from 0.75% to 1.00% in quarter 1 and a further increase to 1.25% 
in quarter 4. None of these rises took place; the base rate remained at 0.75% for the 
majority of the year, then decreased to 0.25% on 11th March 2020 and again to 
0.10% on 19th March in response to the Covid-19 crisis.

2.2. The hold on base rate at 0.75% meant that investment opportunities and yields were 
not as high as anticipated. The reduction in base rate in March will be felt in further 
reduced investment yields in 2020/21.

2.3. In October 2019 the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) increased its borrowing 
interest rates by 1% without warning. However, this actually brought the borrowing 
rates closer to what had been anticipated in the strategy. It also meant the the Local 
Authority lending market became more competitive again and offers were available 
for longer periods, up to 2 or 3 years, whereas they terms on offer had  reduced  
closer to a year in recent times.

2.4. A consultation on PWLB borrowing was announced in March which may result in 
changes to borrowing rates for certain types of projects including discounts on 
borrowing for housing, infrastructure and restrictions around commercial acitivites. 
The outcome of the consultation is anticipated around September 2020.

Page 8



3. The Current Treasury Position

3.1. The Council’s debt and investment position at the beginning and the end of the 
2019/20  financial year was as follows:

2018/19 2019/20
31st March 

2019 Principal Rate/Return 31st March 
2020 Principal Rate/Return

External Borrowing
  Public Works Loan Board £54,025,404 3.76% £54,025,404 3.76%
  Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% £12,800,000 4.57%
Total Debt £66,825,404 3.92% £66,825,404 3.92%

Total Investments £13,747,417 0.73%* £20,468,366 0.81%*
* Average investment interest rate in March

4. The Council’s Capital Expenditure & Borrowing Requirement 2019/20

4.1. The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities 
may either be financed:
 through the application of capital or revenue resources (including capital 

receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant 
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or

 by external borrowing, where there is insufficient internal resource or where a 
decision is taken to finance expenditure externally.

4.2. Capital expenditure constitutes one of the required prudential indicators. The table 
below shows actual capital expenditure for 2019/20 and how this was financed:

2019/20 Projected 
Outturn*

General Fund Capital Expenditure £4,704,613
HRA Capital Expenditure £2,549,397
Total £7,254,010
Resourced by:
   Capital receipts £1,055,000
   Capital grants & contributions £374,885
   Reserve Funding £2,599,030
   HRA Contribution £389,367
Unfinanced in year capital expenditure
(Underlying Need to Borrow) £2,835,728

*subject to external audit review

4.3. The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR).  It represents the current and previous years’ 
unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for.

4.4. The Treasury Strategy 2019/20 anticipated a £4,676,000 underlying borrowing 
requirement.  The table above shows the provisional outturn as £2,835,728.  The 
difference is largely made up of the reprofiling of capital expenditure into future years.

Page 9



4.5. The Treasury Management team plans the Council’s cash position to ensure 
sufficient cash is available to meet capital plans and cash flow requirements. This 
may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Public Works 
Loan Board or the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within the 
Council.

4.6. The Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise indefinitely.  
Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged to 
revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an annual revenue 
charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) to reduce the CFR.  This is 
effectively a repayment via revenue of the cumulative borrowing need.

4.7. The Council’s 2019/20 MRP Policy was approved as part of the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement 2019/20 in February 2019.

4.8. The Council’s overall CFR is shown below:

4.9. Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for the CFR and the 
Authorised Borrowing Limit.  In order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over 
the medium term, external borrowing must only be for a capital purpose – essentially 
this means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  
Borrowing should not, except in the short-term, exceed the CFR for 2019/20 (plus 
expected changes to the CFR over 2020/21 and 2021/22). This indicator allows the 
Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs. 

4.10. The table below highlights the Council’s borrowing position against the CFR:
31 March 

2020 
Projected 

31 March 
2021 

Forecast 

31 March 
2022 

Forecast
Borrowing position £66,825,404 £68,138,384 £65,348,854
Capital Financing 
Requirement £80,951,387 £81,678,039 £80,698,972

Over / (Under) Borrowed (£14,125,983) (£13,539,655) (£15,350,118)

4.11. The Council is in an ‘under-borrowed’ position of £14,125,983 as at 31st March 2020, 
therefore is complying with the prudential indicator.

5. Borrowing Outturn

5.1. No new external borrowing was taken during 2019/20; the £2,835,728 borrowing 
requirement was instead funded using internal resources available at the time.  There 
were no maturating loans during the year, nor were any future maturing loans 
refinanced.

2019/20 Projected 
Outturn

Opening balance (1st April 2019) £79,897,492
Plus 2019/20 borrowing requirement £2,835,728
Less MRP (£1,781,833)
Closing balance (31st March 2020) £80,951,387

Page 10



5.2. The Council’s level of external borrowing as at 31st March 2020 totalled £66,825,404 
(approximately 66% HRA, 34% General Fund).

5.3. Currently the cost of potential new external borrowing is greater than the interest 
income lost through reduced investment opportunities resulting from this internal 
borrowing. The practice of avoiding new borrowing by utilising spare cash balances 
has served well over recent years in terms of making net savings on financing costs. 
However, this is kept under constant review, especially with an expectation of rate 
rises, to avoid higher borrowing costs in the future.

5.4. As a result of the internal funding described above, the total borrowing costs 
achieved a saving of £148,590 against the budget. The overall cost is split between 
the General Fund and HRA under the one pool approach: the general fund share of 
the saving is £123,480 and the HRA share is £25,110.

5.5. Attention must be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure maturity dates 
are evenly spread and the Council is not exposed to a substantial re-financing 
requirement at any one time, when interest rates are high. The graph below 
illustrates the maturity profile of the current portfolio of loans.  

Less than 
1 year*

1 - 2 
years

2 - 5 
years

6 - 10 
years

11- 20 
years

21 - 30 
years

31 - 40 
years

41 - 50 
years

Greater 
than 50 
years

-

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

Debt Maturity Profile

NB: in accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBOS  is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of £4.3m showing as 
‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.

5.6. Debt Rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to amend 
the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of volatility 
of debt or vary the interest payable.

5.7. No debt rescheduling took place during 2019/20.  Link advised that any premium the 
Council would expect to pay on early redemption would be higher than potential 
interest savings from debt rescheduling.

Page 11



6. Investment Performance  

6.1. The economic backdrop for the year underpins how the Council has performed with 
regard to maximising its investment return. Uncertainty in the long aftermath of the 
2008 financial crisis promotes a cautious approach, whereby investments would 
continue to be dominated by lower counterparty risk considerations, resulting in 
relatively low returns compared to borrowing rates.

6.2. The investment performance of the Treasury Management function is dependent 
upon a number of factors, including the size of available investment balances; the 
market interest rates available; the timing of capital spend; the restrictions placed on 
the Council by its approved Lending List.

6.3. The Council achieved an average interest rate of 0.81% on its investment portfolio. 
This compared favourably with market benchmarks as shown in the table below:

Comparator Average 
Rate Q1 

Average 
Rate Q2 

Average 
Rate Q3

Average 
Rate Q4

Total 
2019/20

HPBC Total 0.82% 0.82% 0.81% 0.80% 0.81%
HPBC Total Long-term (>364 days) 1.25% 1.21% 1.16% 1.15% 1.17%
HPBC Total Short-term (<364 days) 0.97% 0.98% 0.93% 0.95% 0.95%
HPBC Total Short-term (instant access) 0.67% 0.64% 0.65% 0.63% 0.64%

Link Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 Day Rate 0.57% 0.56% 0.57% 0.43% 0.53%
*LIBID 3 Month Rate 0.68% 0.64% 0.64% 0.55% 0.63%
*LIBID 6 Month Rate 0.78% 0.69% 0.74% 0.61% 0.70%
*LIBID 12 Month Rate 0.91% 0.75% 0.83% 0.69% 0.80%

Base Rate at end of period 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.10%

*LIBID (London Interbank Bid Rate) 

6.4. The investment portfolio was held on a short-term basis (< 1 year) through 2019/20, 
in line with professional advice issued by Link.  The Council continues to take 
advantage of the above market rates on offer to public bodies by part-nationalised 
banks.

7. Investment Portfolio & Interest Yield

7.1. The Council manages its investments in-house, investing only with institutions that 
meet the Council’s approved minimum lending criteria. The Council currently invests 
for a range of periods from overnight up to 1 year, dependent on cash flows, its 
interest rate view, the interest rates on offer and durational limits as set out in the 
Treasury Strategy.  

7.2. The Lending List is constructed based on credit ratings provided by the three main 
credit agencies supplemented by additional market data, using the Link 
Creditworthiness analysis. 

7.3. Money was invested during the year with 11 institutions. All investments were placed 
in line with the Council’s approved lending limits (see Annex A for current lending 
limits) and the Treasury Management Strategy.  

Page 12



7.4. The table below summarises the institutions that the Council invested funds with 
during the financial year. It also indicates the average daily investment, interest 
earned and the associated interest rates. Interest rates vary depending on the length 
and timing of investments. The investment funds include those held in the Council’s 
instant access accounts.  The average daily investment during 2019/20 was £21.4m.

Financial Institution Country of 
Domicile

Interest 
Earned 

(£s)
Average Daily 

Investment (£s)
Rate of 
Return 

(%)
Money Market Funds UK 47,237 6,444,794 0.73
Santander UK 38,241 3,824,114 1.00
Lloyds Bank UK 34,833 3,155,890 1.10
Handelsbanken UK 14,576 2,242,528 0.65
Goldman Sachs UK 19,017 2,005,479 0.95
NatWest Bank (NRFB) UK 4,452 1,594,308 0.28
Bank of Scotland UK 5,934 916,252 0.65
Coventry Building Society UK 5,618 756,164 0.74
Credit Suisse AG (CD) Switzerland 3,671 421,918 0.87
NatWest Bank (RFB) UK 592 65,753 0.90
Cooperatieve Rabobank (CD) Netherlands 226 21,918 1.03
Total 174,397 21,449,120 0.81

7.5. The Council earned £174,397 in investment income in 2019/20. In addition the 
Council received £14,360 in interest income from the loan to Buxton Crescent 
Heritage Trust. Overall there was a shortfall of £36,503 against the interest income 
budget of £225,260.

7.6. Investments held at the 31st March 2020 are highlighted in the table below:

7.7. All investments held as at 31st March 2020 are for a period of one year or less. The 
exposure to fixed and variable interest rates is shown below:

31st March 
2020 Actual

Fixed Rate £10,650,000
Variable Rate £9,818,366
TOTAL £20,468,366

    Financial Institution Country of 
domicile Group / Parent

Principal 
Amount 
Invested

Money Market Funds UK Money Market Fund £5,700,000
Santander UK Santander UK £4,500,000
Handelsbanken UK Handelsbanken £2,300,000
Lloyds Bank UK Lloyds Banking Group £2,150,000
Goldman Sachs UK Goldman Sachs £2,000,000
NatWest Bank UK Royal Bank of Scotland £1,818,366
Coventry Building Society UK Coventry Building Socieity £1,000,000
Credit Suisse AG (CD) Switzerland Credit Suisse (AG) £1,000,000

Total Principal Invested £20,468,366

Page 13



8. Compliance with Treasury Limits

8.1. Treasury Limits and Prudential Indicators were set in the 2019/20 Treasury 
Management Strategy.  The full outturn for the Indicators is shown in Annex B.

8.2. The Council has not borrowed more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.

Page 14



ANNEX A
Current Lending Limits

UK Banks

Category Principal Limit Maximum Length Portfolio (% of 
highest balance)

Purple £6.0m Up to 2 years 20%
Orange £5.4m Up to 1 year 18%

Red £4.5m Up to 6 months 15%
Green £3.9m Up to 100 days 13%

Yellow** £6.0m Up to 5 years 20%
No Colour n/a Not to be used n/a

International Banks

Category Principal Limit Maximum Length Portfolio (% of 
highest balance)

Purple £4.5m Up to 2 years 15%
Orange £3.6m Up to 1 year 12%

Red £3.0m Up to 6 months 10%
Green £2.4m Up to 100 days 8%

No Colour n/a Not to be used n/a

Nationalised Banks

Category Principal 
Limit

Maximum 
Length

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance)

Blue £6.0m Up to 1 year 20%
NatWest (the Council’s main 

bank account) £9.0m Up to 1 year 30%

Group Limits

Category
Portfolio (% of 

highest 
balance*)

Individual 
Principal Limit

Portfolio % 
increased by 

50%
Group Principal 

Limit

Blue 20% £6.0m 30% £9.0m
Purple 20% £6.0m 30% £9.0m
Orange 18% £5.4m 27% £8.1m

Red 15% £4.5m 23% £6.9m
Green 13% £3.9m 20% £6.0m

Money Market Funds
£5.4m for up to 1 year per fund (£6.9m maximum overall)

Page 15



ANNEX B

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2019/20 2019/20

Strategy Provisional 
Outturn

£'000 £'000
Capital Expenditure
    General Fund 6,744 4,705
    HRA 4,094 2,549
    Total 10,838 7,254
Reduction in capital expenditure due to reprofiling of programmes to future years

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
    General Fund 15% 15%
    HRA 12% 12%

Gross borrowing requirement
    Total Gross Borrowing (31st March) 74,025 66,825
    2019/20 Borrowing requirement 4,676 2,836
 
Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March
    General Fund 28,821 27,552
    HRA 53,859 53,399
    TOTAL 82,680 80,951

Annual change in Capital Financing 
Requirement 
    General Fund 3,894 2,054
    HRA (1,000) (1,000)
    Total 2,942 1,054

2019/20 2019/20

Strategy Provisional 
Outturn

TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 

£'000 £'000
Authorised Limit for external debt Limit Actual
    Borrowing 90,682 66,825
    other long term liabilities 0 0
     TOTAL 90,682 66,825

Operational Boundary for external debt Limit Actual
     Borrowing 88,182 66,825
     other long term liabilities 0 0
     TOTAL 88,182 66,825

Limit Actual
Upper limit for total principal sums 
invested for over 365 days 4,000 0

Page 16



Maturity structure of fixed rate 
borrowing

Upper limit in 
2019/20 Strategy

2019/20 Actual 
Maturity Profile 
(as at 31st March 

2020)
under 12 months * 30% 6%

12 months and within 2 years 30% 0%

2 years and within 5 years 40% 6%
5 years and within 10 years 60% 6%
10 years and above 90% 82%

* in accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBOS  is now deemed to be the next call date. Loans of £4.3m (6%) 
showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.

Maturity structure of variable rate 
borrowing

Upper limit in 
2019/20 Strategy

2019/20 Actual 
Maturity Profile 
(as at 31st March 

2020)
under 12 months * 100% 0%

12 months and within 2 years 50% 0%

2 years and within 5 years 0% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 0% 0%
10 years and above 0% 0%

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee

3rd July 2020

TITLE: Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2020/21

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak – Head of Audit

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 High Peak BC / Staffordshire Moorlands 
DC Internal Audit - Audit Plan 2020/21

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager should establish a risk based audit plan to 
determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 
Council’s goals. The audit plan must be based on a documented risk 
assessment undertaken at least annually.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee approve the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2020/21.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards state that the Audit Plan must be 
based on a documented risk assessment undertaken at least annually and it 
needs to be flexible in response to changes in the Council’s business, risks, 
operations, programs, systems and controls. Furthermore, the Standard states 
that the Audit Manager must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans 
and resource requirements to senior management and the Audit Committee 
for review and approval. The Audit Manager must also communicate the 
impact of resource limitations. This report seeks to address these 
requirements.

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



3.2 Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, considerable audit resource in the first quarter 
of 2020/21 was diverted to support the corporate response to the 
administration of the Governments various business grants support schemes. 
As a result the Audit Plan for 2020/21 will therefore be reduced accordingly 
and will aim to cover the Council’s key risks and systems.

3.3 The annual audit plan for 2020/21 has been created and is attached as 
Appendix 1. This involved a review of the risk scores in accordance with the 
Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology to ensure that the 
most recent changes affecting risk are taken into account. The Internal Audit 
Plan is a joint Alliance plan designed to make the best use of Alliance 
resources and to reflect the nature of Council services.

3.4 Should any amendments to the audit plan be necessary during the year, these 
will be reported to Councillors at future Audit & Regulatory Committee 
meetings.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 Approve the 2020/21 Audit Plan (Recommended). The Council will have an 
achievable risk based internal audit plan which is designed to provide 
assurance that the control environment is effective in achieving the Council’s 
objectives and is in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, 
and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

5.2 Do not approve the 2020/21 Audit Plan (Not Recommended). The Council will 
not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requirement 
to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”.

ANDREW P STOKES
Acting Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

None N/A John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorla
nds.gov.uk

Page 20



6. Detail

6.1 The audit plan must be based on a documented risk assessment undertaken 
at least annually, in accordance with the requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. However the audit plan needs to be flexible to be 
able to reflect the changing risks and priorities of the Council so the entire 
scope of audits will receive ongoing consideration and attention to ensure that 
appropriate audit coverage is achieved.

6.2 The Audit Plan has been developed using a comprehensive risk assessment 
framework which is designed to assess all areas of the Council’s services and 
thereby examine and evaluate the whole system of internal controls (both 
financial and non-financial) established by management. This risk assessment 
allows the Audit Plan to be focused, concentrating resources on the areas of 
greatest need and where there will be the best use of audit resources. The 
work is designed to appraise and review :

 the completeness, reliability and integrity of information, both financial and 
operational;

 the systems established to ensure compliance with policies, plans, 
procedures, laws and regulations, i.e. rules established by the 
management of the Council, or externally;

 the means of safeguarding assets;
 the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are 

employed, and whether operations are being carried out as planned and 
objectives and goals are being met.

6.3 The risk based planning methodology utilised to prepare the audit plan 
assesses each system on eight risk elements :

 Monetary / financial value;
 Volume of transactions;
 System factors – stability / type of processing application / complexity of 

regulations and / or processing;
 Managerial and control environment / previous assurance;
 Incidence / risk of fraud;
 Sensitivity;
 Corporate risks; and
 Time since previous audit.

This approach is linked to a mapping exercise whereby corporate risks are 
mapped to the Audit Plan to ensure they are adequately considered during the 
audit lifecycle.

6.4 Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, considerable audit resource in the first quarter 
of 2020/21 was diverted to support the corporate response to the 
administration of the Government’s various business grants support schemes. 
As a result the Audit Plan for 2020/21 will therefore be reduced accordingly 
and will aim to cover the Council’s key risks and systems. However the plan 
will have to be flexible to reflect the changing risks and priorities of the Council 

Page 21



as the impact on services of the pandemic become clearer.

6.5 The annual audit plan for 2020/21 has therefore been created and is attached 
as Appendix 1. As the Internal Audit service is a joint resource across both 
Alliance Councils, and all Alliance services are joint, the most efficient method 
of auditing to take advantage of economies of scale is to undertake audits 
covering both Alliance Councils. However there will still be occasions when 
audits only cover one of the Alliance Councils and this is reflected within the 
Audit Plan. The future audit approach to potential challenges to the internal 
control environment will need to be adapted as the delivery of Council services 
continue to be developed.

6.6 It is planned to supplement the annual audit plan if required during 2020/21 
with the purchase of a specialist ICT audit resource to focus on technical ICT 
risks. An initial needs assessment to facilitate the prioritisation of future ICT 
audits was undertaken previously and where considered appropriate ICT 
audits arising from this assessment will be planned and undertaken during 
2020/21 and future years utilising available budget(s).

Page 22



APPENDIX 1
HIGH PEAK BC / STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DC

INTERNAL AUDIT – AUDIT PLAN 2020/21

AUDIT SMDC HPBC ALLIANCE TOTAL
Key Financial Systems
Budgetary Control 10 10
Council Tax 15 15
Creditor Payments 10 10
Housing Benefits 15 15
Housing Rents 15 15
General Ledger 10 10
Non-Domestic Rates 15 15
Payroll 15 15
Recovery 15 15
Sundry Debtors 10 10
Treasury Management 10 10
TOTAL – KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 0 15 125 140

Areas identified within Corporate Risks
Capital Accounting 10 10
Emergency Planning 15 15
Equalities 10 10
Human Resources 15 15
Leisure Sports Development 10 10
Regeneration 15 15
Strategic Partnerships 10 10
TOTAL – CORPORATE RISKS 0 0 85 85

Areas identified by Internal Audit
CCTV 10 10
Climate Change 10 10
Corporate Governance 15 15
Elections 10 10
Housing Advice 10 10
Housing Repairs & Maintenance 15 15
Licensing 15 15
Performance Management 10 10
Project Management 10 10
Risk Management 10 10
TOTAL – AREAS IDENTIFIED BY IA 0 15 100 115

TOTAL PLANNED DAYS 0 30 310 340

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for High Peak Borough Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

External Audit Plan update
Year ending 31 March 2020

High Peak Borough Council

29 April 2020

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 3



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for High Peak Borough Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

2

Introduction & headlines

Purpose

This document provides an update to the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit of High Peak Borough Council (‘the Authority’) as reported in our Audit Plan dated 12 February
2020, for those charged with governance.

The current environment

In addition to the audit risks communicated to those charged with governance in our Audit Plan on 12 February 2020, recent events have led us to update our planning risk assessment and 
reconsider our audit and value for money (VfM) approach to reflect the unprecedented global response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The significance of the situation cannot be underestimated 
and the implications for individuals, organisations and communities remains highly uncertain. For our public sector audited bodies, we appreciate the significant responsibility and burden 
your staff have to ensure vital public services are provided. As far we can, our aim is to work with you in these unprecedented times, ensuring up to date communication and flexibility where 
possible in our audit procedures. Along with the Covid-19 pandemic, in March 2020 both the Chief Executive and Assistant Chief Executive of the Council resigned. This has resulted in 
changes in the senior management team and leadership of the Council during the 2019/20 financial year and has required existing Directors and Managers to “step up” to fill the void created 
by these departures, whilst also dealing with the impact of the pandemic.

Impact on our audit and VfM work

Management and those charged with governance are still required to prepare financial statements in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and the Code of Audit Practice, albeit
to an extended deadline for the preparation of the financial statements up to 31 August 2020 and the date for audited financials statements to 30 November 2020, however we will liaise with
management to agree appropriate timescales. We continue to be responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the Authority’s financial statements and VfM arrangements.

In order to fulfil our responsibilities under International Auditing Standards (ISA’s (UK)) we have revisited our planning risk assessment. We may also need to consider implementing changes to
the procedures we had planned and reported in our Audit Plan to reflect current restrictions to working practices, such as the application of technology to allow remote working. Additionally, it
has been confirmed since our Audit Plan was issued that the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed for the public sector until 2020/21.

Changes to our audit approach

To date we have:

- Identified a new significant financial statement risk, as described overleaf

- Reviewed the materiality levels we determined for the audit and we did not identify any changes to our materiality assessment as a result of the risk identified due to Covid-19.

Changes to our VfM approach

We have updated our VfM risk assessment to document our understanding of your arrangements to ensure critical business continuity in the current environment. We have now assessed that
the

• financial sustainability of the Council as a significant risk, given the impact of Covid 19 and will look to see what arrangements the council has in place to manage this impact on its finances

• the changes in the senior management team represent a significant risk, given that this has resulted in many mangers taking on additional responsibilities and the impact on governance
arrangements at the Council.

Conclusion

We will ensure any further changes in our audit and VfM approach and procedures are communicated with management and reported in our Audit Findings Report. We wish to thank
management for their timely collaboration in this difficult time.

P
age 26



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for High Peak Borough Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

3

Significant risks identified – Covid – 19 pandemic
Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Covid – 19 

(Financial 
Statements 
and Value for 
Money)

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to unprecedented uncertainty for all 
organisations, requiring urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect current 
circumstances will have an impact on the production and audit of the financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to;

- Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical front line duties may impact on 
the quality and timing of the production of the financial statements, and the evidence we can obtain 
through physical observation

- Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the uncertainty of assumptions applied by 
management to asset valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability of evidence we 
can obtain to corroborate management estimates

- Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider financial forecasts supporting their going 
concern assessment and whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months from the 
anticipated date of approval of the audited financial statements have arisen; and 

- Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant revision to reflect the 
unprecedented situation and its impact on the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 
2020 in accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a significant risk, which was one of 
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

Financial Statements

We will:

• Work with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-19 
pandemic has on the organisation’s ability to prepare the financial statements and 
update financial forecasts and assess the implications on our audit approach

• Liaise with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-ordinate 
practical cross sector responses to issues as and when they arise 

• Evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements  in light of the 
Covid-19 pandemic.

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches can be obtained 
for the purposes of our audit whilst working remotely

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate significant 
management estimates such as asset valuations and recovery of receivable balances

• Evaluate management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial forecasts and 
the impact on management’s going concern assessment

• Discuss with management any potential implications for our audit report if we have been 
unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence

Value for Money

We will:

 Review the Councils updated Medium Term Financial Plan and Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Strategy and assess the impact on the Councils financial resilience and 
arrangements it has to manage its finances as a result of the pandemic.

Senior 
Management 
Changes

(Value for 
Money)

In March 2020 both the Chief Executive and Assistant Chief Executive of the Council resigned. This has 
resulted in existing Directors and Managers within the organisation having to “step up” to fill the void and 
had had an impact on governance arrangements within the operations of the Council.

We will:

• Work with management to understand the impact on operations of the Council after 
these departures and look at how they responded

• Work with Internal Audit to assess the impact on governance arrangements at the 
Council

• Gain an understanding of the Councils future arrangements in regards to these vacated 
posts 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Information 
Digest

To: Audit & Regulatory Committee
Date: 3rd July 2020

Treasury Management Update
Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Treasury Management Mid-Year Update 
Report, 31st May 2020

Councillor Alan Barrow
Executive Councillor for Corporate Services & 
Finance

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner

Page 29

Agenda Item 4



1. Reason for the Report

1.1. To allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury Management 
performance in 2020/21 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
and generally accepted good practice.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31st May 
2020.

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the Council in March 2010. 
This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of which is to produce at 
least one mid-year operational report.

3.2. This report comprises the following:

 The latest interest rate forecast;

 Investment income earned to date and projected for 2020/21;

 The current investment portfolio;

 The borrowing portfolio with projected borrowing costs for 202/21 and debt 
rescheduling options; and

 Compliance against Prudential and Treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2020/21.

3.3. The main headlines include:

 The Bank of England base rate has reduced to 0.10% in March 2020 with 
no expectation for any increase in the medium term.

 The Covid-19 pandemic and resulting economic crisis is considered in 
terms of the impact on treasury management, in particular the cash flows.

 A shortfall of £42,000 is expected against the investment income budget of 
£160,000 due to reducing interest rates.

 The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the 
period from 1st April to 31st May was 0.55%. This compares favorably to 
short-term industry benchmarks.

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £26million spread across six 
separate institutions as at 31st May 2020.

Page 30



 The borrowing costs are forecast as on target against the budget.

 The Council’s total level of debt as at 31st May was £66.8million at an 
average annual borrowing rate of 3.92%.  

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the Council’s main 
priorities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak Borough 
Council for 2020/21 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is a statement 
of fact and there are no options.

Claire Hazeldene
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

‘Treasury Management – Governance & 
Scrutiny Arrangements’ (Audit & 
Regulatory Committee September 2009)

‘Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2020/21’ (Audit & Regulatory 
Committee, February 2020)

Finance & Procurement
Town Hall, Buxton

Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Emily.Bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 31



Appendix A

Treasury Management Update 
31st May 2020

1. Introduction 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management

4. Investment Income

5. Investment Portfolio

6. Borrowing Position

7. Prudential Indicators

Page 32



1. Introduction 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management which recommends that Members should be briefed on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year.

1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 
the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 
treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 
management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
are reported to full Council.

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was 
approved by Council on 12th February 2020. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 31st May 2020 and projects forward for the 
remainder of the financial year.

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 
base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:

% Jun-
20

Sep-
20

Dec-
20

Mar-
21

Jun-
21

Sep-
21

Dec-
21

Mar-
22

Bank Rate 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
5yr PWLB 

rate 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10

10r PWLB 
rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB 
rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB 
rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50

2.2. Link’s interest rate forecast has been updated following the Bank of England 
base rate cut from 0.75% to 0.25% on 11th March and again to 0.10% on 19th 
March 2020. The forecast was made at the end of March 2020 and took into 
account the known situation with regard to coronavirus at the time and its 
potential impact on economies around the world. Link has pragmatically 
reduced the forecast to two years ahead to acknowledge the exceptional level 
of uncertainty at the current time.

Page 33



3. Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management

3.1. As a period of lockdown was implemented in March 2020 due the Coronavirus 
pandemic, there were immediate concerns about the Council’s cash flow due to 
the resulting economic crisis affecting the Council’s main sources of income in 
Council Tax and Business Rates receipts. 

1.1. Cash flow will be affected by deferrals of payment plans, shifting the cash flow 
to later in the year than is usual; increase in recipients of Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme as more residents become eligible, reducing the Council’s 
income; increase in instances of non-payment, reducing the Council’s income 
and an increase in business rates reliefs, which is replaced by the equivalent 
income from the government via a grant, but could change the cash flow profile 
of these amounts.  It is also impacted by a reduction in general fees and 
charges – some of which have reduced during the lockdown period – such as 
car parking fees.

3.2. Liquidity is a primary concern in Treasury Management, subordinate only to 
security, therefore a decision was made that all fixed investments should be 
returned to instant access accounts upon maturity and no new fixed 
investments would be taken until a clearer understanding of the cash flow 
situation had been gained.

3.3. Conversely, on 1st April the Council received £29million from Central 
Government to distribute under the Business Grants Scheme. This cash flow 
level is significantly greater than the Council’s normal levels, therefore it was 
necessary to increase all the Counterparty limits set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement for 2020/21 in order to accommodate these 
balances in the short term as the scheme was administered and payments 
could be made. The increase in these limits is show in detail at section 5.

3.4. Central government also allowed Councils to delay payments of the Business 
Rates share which eased cash flow in the first quarter, but will unwind as we 
progress throughout the year. 

4. Investment Income 

4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st May 2020 totalled £31,270. 
The Council has budgeted to receive £160,000 in investment income in 
2020/21. The budget was set with an expectation of higher interest rates than 
the current environment: 0.75% for the first three quarters of the year and a 
further potential rise to 1.00% at the end of the year. 

4.2. The Bank of England base rate reductions in March have resulted in cuts to all 
of the instant access accounts. If a decision is made to include fixed 
investments in the portfolio again, the yield opportunities are also significantly 
reduced, therefore may not improve income receipts. 

Page 34



4.3. The investment portfolio is also reduced due to the continuation of internal 
borrowing, though this still represents a net saving in lieu of the external 
borrowing costs. Therefore a shortfall of £42,000 is forecast on the investment 
income budget.

4.4. Average interest rates achieved on the Council’s investments are shown in the 
table below; these compare favourably to the LIBID rates, the recognised 
industry benchmark rates:

Comparator Average Rate 
Apr-May

HPBC Average 0.55%
HPBC long-term fixed (>364 days) 1.10%
HPBC short-term fixed (<364 days) 0.98%
HPBC instant access 0.41%
Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 day rate 0.00%
*LIBID 3 month rate 0.30%
*LIBID 6 month rate 0.43%
*LIBID 12 month rate 0.59%
Base Rate at the end of the period 0.10%

*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

Crescent Development

4.5. The Council provided a loan of £250,000 to the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust 
as part of the Crescent development. Interest is charged on the loan at 6% 
which amounts to £15,000 during 2020/21. This income is included in the 
investment income forecast outturn reported above. Repayments of the loan at 
£50,000 per year begin August 2021.

5. Investment Portfolio

5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 31st May 2020 totalled £25,864,000:

Financial Institution Country of 
Domicile Amount

Maximum 
recommended lending 

duration

Average 
interest rate at 
end of period

Average 
Maturity

Handelsbanken UK £7,300,000 ORANGE (12 months) 0.35% Instant access
Aberdeen MMF UK £5,600,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.33% Instant access
Santander UK UK £4,500,000 RED (6 months) 1.00% 95 day notice
Santander UK UK £4,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.40% Instant access
Lloyds Bank (RFB) UK £2,150,000 ORANGE (12 months) 1.10% 1 year
Federated MMF UK £1,500,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.31% Instant access
NatWest Bank (RFB) UK £814,000 BLUE (12 months) 0.20% Instant access

TOTAL £25,864,000
MMF = Money Market Fund

5.2. The average level of funds available for investment up to 31st May 2020 was 
£33.7million. 

Page 35



5.3. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Link, is shown by colour 
banding in the table below:

5.4. Group limits are also applied:

Portfolio % increased 
by 50%

Per TMSS 
2020/21

Extraordinary counterparty 
limit increase: Covid-19

Category Group 
Principal Limit Group Principal Limit

BLUE £10.5m £21.0m
PURPLE £10.5m £21.0m
ORANGE £9.4m £18.8m

RED £8.0m £16.0m
GREEN £7.0m £14.0m

Money Market Funds £10.5m £21.0m
 

6. Borrowing Position

6.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement.

6.2. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 31st May 2020 is £66,825,404, as 
detailed in the table below:

Lender External 
Borrowing

Average 
Interest Rate Maturity period

Public Works Loan Board £54,025,404 3.76% between 2 and 43 years

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 3 and 48 years

Total £66,825,404 3.92%

Per TMSS 2020/21
Extraordinary 

counterparty limit 
increase: Covid-19

Colour Banding Maximum Duration 
of Investment

UK 
Banks

International 
Banks UK Banks

PURPLE Up to 2 years £7.0m £5.2m £14.0m
ORANGE Up to 12 months £6.3m £4.2m £12.6m

RED Up to 6 months £5.2m £3.5m £10.4m
GREEN Up to 100 days £4.5m £2.8m £9.0m

BLUE (Part nationalised 
financial institutions) Up to 1 year £7.0m n/a £14.0m

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 year £10.5m n/a £21.0m

Money Market Funds Up to 1 year £7.0m n/a £14.0m

Page 36



6.3. The ‘operational boundary’ (£89,098,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£91,598,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing available to the 
Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of borrowing is within 
prudential limits.

6.4. The Council adopts a ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing whereby investments 
and borrowing are managed centrally with the proportional income and 
expenditure then split between the general fund and HRA. The Council has 
budgeted for interest charges and other financing costs of £1,837,940 to the 
general fund and £1,746,340 to the HRA in 2020/21

6.5. The budget for borrowing costs was based on the existing external debt and 
new external debt from the 2019/20 and 2020/21 general fund borrowing 
requirements. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing thus far during the current 
year and the Council continues to maintain a level of internal borrowing as 
anticipated. Therefore the borrowing costs are forecast to be on target against 
the budget.

6.6. The treasury team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to externally 
borrow based on the profile of spend and opportunities to ‘internally’ borrow, 
considering the movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any 
borrowings taken.

6.7. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure 
maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates are 
high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.

Less than 
1 year*

1 - 2 
years

2 - 5 
years

6 - 10 
years

11- 20 
years

21 - 30 
years

31 - 40 
years

41 - 50 
years

Greater 
than 50 
years

-

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

Debt Maturity Profile

*In accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBO’s is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of 
£4.3m showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.

6.8. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the risk.  
The treasury team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for debt 
rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council.

Page 37



6.9. No rescheduling has taken place during 2020/21 to date.  The Council will work 
with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking account of 
the premium the Council would expect to pay on early redemption compared to 
the potential interest savings.  

7. Prudential Indicators

7.1. The Council has operated within the treasury management and prudential 
indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020/21 and 
complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.

Page 38



Information 
Digest

To: Audit and Regulatory Committee
Date: 3 July 2020

Risk Management Update
Appendices attached: 
Appendix A: Strategic Risks (by exception)
Appendix B: Operational Risks (by exception)
Appendix C: Project Risks (by exception)
Appendix D: Opportunity Risks (all registers by exception)

Councillor Alan Barrow
Executive Councillor for Corporate Services & 
Finance

Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



1.        Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Risk 
Management arrangements in accordance with generally accepted good 
practice and in this instance also, to highlight the impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic on the Council’s risk profile.  

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the committee notes the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation 
/ fruition plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks), Appendix B 
(operational risks), Appendix C (project risks) and Appendix D (opportunity 
risks). 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 
by the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. This report is 
based upon the Council’s position as at May 2020.   

3.2 The latest analysis of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council has 
identified and assessed 16 strategic risks, of which 44% are rated as 'high' 
and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. This represents an 
increase of 6% as the world events risk has been escalated to ‘high’ to reflect 
the pandemic and its consequences. The seven ‘high’ rated risks are listed in 
full at Appendix A.   

3.3 The Operational Risk Registers reveal that the Council has identified and 
assessed 44 operational risks in total (an increase of four), of which six are 
rated as ‘high’ and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance thresholds. 
This represents a net increase of one ‘high’ rated risk, the details of all the 
significant changes can be found at paragraph 9. The risks falling within the 
‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B.

3.4 The project risk registers now cover 13 projects and the risk profile is bulleted 
below:

 0% Critical 
 8% High – 4 risks (plus 2) 
 50% Medium – 24 (plus 13) 
 42% Low – 20 (minus 4) 

4. Evaluation of Options

4.1 There are no options to consider

Page 40



5. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

5.1 Risk Management impacts on all service areas and therefore links to each of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.   

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies

6.4 Financial Considerations
Effective Risk Management contributes to financial objectives 

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8 Risk Assessment
The Council’s Risk Registers are a critical element in the Council’s 
Risk Management Framework.  

ANDREW P STOKES
Acting Chief Executive

Background Papers Location Contact details

Risk Registers – May 2020 Buxton Town Hall Information Business Partner
Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk 
Tel Ext 4057

Page 41

mailto:Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk


7. Detail

7.1 The Council ensures that it undertakes a deliberate and systematic 
identification of the key risks that might prevent, degrade, delay or enhance 
the achievement of its objectives and priorities. The Council's Risk 
Management Strategy sets out the process for undertaking this on an ongoing 
basis. 

7.2 In addition to the identification of risks, managers also have to quantify them in 
terms of likelihood and potential impact. The risks are then recorded in the 
Council's Risk Registers. These have three aspects – strategic, operational 
and project risks. 

7.3 Under the Risk Management Strategy, the Council’s ‘risk tolerance’ threshold 
is set along the border between ‘medium’ and ‘high’ rated residual risks. The 
Strategy stipulates that mitigating actions should be identified for all risks that 
exceed this threshold.

7.4 The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 
on a quarterly basis and reported into the Corporate Risk Management Group 
and the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. The 
appendices provide details of all risks that have been rated as ‘high’ or above, 
and therefore beyond the Council’s risk tolerance threshold.  

8. Strategic Risks

8.1 The May 2020 review of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council 
has identified and assessed 16 Strategic Risks, of which 44% are rated as 
'high' and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. There has 
been one new ‘high rated’ risk as a result of the pandemic – the impacts of 
world events on the council’s financial and regulatory frameworks – and an 
escalated risk score for the already ‘high rated’ risk around the delivery of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. There continues to be four opportunity risks 
within the register – housing growth, business growth, commercialism (trading) 
and effective contractor relations, which the alliance is working to reap the 
benefits from.

8.3 The Council’s risk profile is displayed below. 

Residual Risk Rating High Peak
Risks

Alliance
Risks

Total
Risks

Critical - - -
High - 7 7
Medium 1 6 7
Low - 2 2

Total Risks 16
    

Page 42



Matrix 1: Risk Threats 

Matrix 2: Risk Opportunities

   
8.4 The seven high rated risks are mapped on Matrix 1 above and the four 

opportunity risks are shown on Matrix 2. The categories of risk now recorded 
on the strategic risk register cover a broader range of risk types than 
before. The graphic below illustrates the risk profile across both threats and 
opportunities and also across our Corporate Plan aims.     

Impact
1 2 3 4 5

5
4

- MTFP
- World Events

3

-  IT Security
- Ext Funding 
for Growth 

- Contract 
Mngt

- Investment 
into assets 

2

  
- Safeguarding 

duty 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

1

Impact
5 4 3 2 1

5
4

Effective 
contractor 
relations

3

Housing & 
Business 
Growth

Council 
Trading

2

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

1

Page 43



9. Operational Risks 

9.1 The May 2020 analysis of the Operational Risk Registers reveals that the 
Council has identified and assessed 44 operational risks in total, of which six 
are rated as ‘high’ and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. 
The main changes since the last review are bulleted below:

 Housing - New risk around B&B placements and the duty to house
 Benefits - New risk around increased Universal Credit claims and the 

impact on resources
 Customer Services - New risk around closure of reception areas and 

impact on access / reputation
 Carelink – lowering of funding risk from high to medium following last 

year’s funding agreement. New low risk around PPE availability in 
response to coronavirus

 Finance – increased risk score for income streams from 12 to 16
 Service Commissioning – increased risk scores from low to high for 

waste and leisure contractor risks and the ability to fulfil contractual 
obligations due to the pandemic 

9.2 The six risks falling within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. A 
full breakdown of the Council’s operational risk profile is given below:

Residual Risk 
Rating

High Peak Risks Alliance
Risks

Total Risks

Critical - - -
High 0 6 6
Medium 2 8 10
Low 9 19 28

Total Risks 44
   

Page 44



9.3 The greatest number of operational risks sits within Service Commissioning, 
closely followed by Carelink. An analysis of the alignment of risk to our 
corporate objectives shows that most operational risks relate to the use of 
resources in order to achieve value for money.  

10. Project Risks

10.1 The alliance’s project management methodology requires all projects to 
present an assessment of associated risks at Stage Two of the decision-
making process for project approval.

10.2 May’s risk review has seen the addition of a new project risk register for the 
Heritage Action Zone scheme at Buxton (HAZ) and the addition of several new 
or increased risks within current projects due to the pandemic.    

 Digital Portal
 Committee Management System 
 Accelerated housing delivery programme (HP) (risk around planning 

approval for sites now increased to ‘high’ due to impact on planning 
meetings from the pandemic)

 Hybrid Mail 
 Glossop Cemetery (HP) 
 Crescent (HP) (7 additional medium rated risks added due to the 

pandemic)
 Glossop Halls (HP)
 Leisure Management (new high rated risk due to the cost implications of 

the pandemic on the sector and the project itself)
 Civica Pay 
 Enhanced Trading 

Page 45



 Assets Database 
 Whitfield play area (HP) 
 NEW - HAZ Scheme Buxton (HP)

 
10.3 The profile of project risk threats overall is bulleted below: 

 0% Critical 
 8% High – 4 risks (plus 2) 
 50% Medium – 24 (plus 13) 
 42% Low – 20 (minus 4) 

10.4 In addition, a total of 18 opportunity risks have been identified across eight of 
the above projects and all above tolerance positive risks are reported in 
Appendix D. 

Page 46



Appendix A: Above tolerance Strategic Risks
ALT 
Owner 

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Claire 
Hazeldene

SRRT 
- 2

Delivery of 
MTFP through 
the Efficiency 
and 
Rationalisation 
Strategy

Effective programme and 
project management 
methodology for the 
transformation programme. 
Performance Management 
Framework monitors the 
achievement of Council Aims. 
2017/18 efficiency savings 
targets have been met (Yr 1). 
Nov 2018 - efficiencies are on 
track. Leisure procurement 
projects completed. MTFP Nov 
2019 iteration completed.

4 4 1. Monthly Transformation Board 
meetings to oversee key projects 
linked to the efficiency and 
rationalisation strategy e.g. housing 
delivery programmes to facilitate 
growth and the various income 
generation projects. 2. Accelerated 
procurement projects including 
environmental services (phase 3) 
and facilities management. 3. MTFP 
mid-year review (a new E&R Plan 
may be needed in light of the 
financial impacts from CV-19). 

1. ongoing 2. 
As per project 
milestones 3. 
MTFP review 
2020

Claire 
Hazeldene

SRRT 
- 5

Effective 
contract 
management

1. Contract register in place. 2. 
Clear specification at the point 
of contract appointment e.g. 
KPIs. 3. Allocated contract 
manager within service areas. 4. 
Pre-qualification checks. 5. Due 
diligence undertaken. 6. 
Insurance requirements. 7. 
Bond / Financial Security 
guarantee for high value / high 
risk larger contracts.  8. Ensure 
Payments to suppliers are 
processed in accordance with 
the terms of the appointments 
(to ensure cash flow in supply 
chain). 

5 3 1. Procurement Business Partner 
meetings with Service Managers 
have a contract management focus 
and will provide prompts for ongoing 
contractor checks needed e.g. 
insurance reviews. 2. Updated 
Procurement Strategy will have an 
enhanced focus on contract 
management, including a new 
Toolkit for use by contract 
managers. 3. Implement the contract 
management module of the e-
tendering system to help with 
contract monitoring and 
consolidation of data. 4. Carry out a 
risk-prioritisation exercise for major 

1. Held 
quarterly  2. 
2020. 3., 4. and 
5. during 2019-
20.

P
age 47



ALT 
Owner 

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

contracts and conduct annual 
financial health checks against the 
most critical contractors.  5. Review 
Suppliers contract list and activity in 
market, market insight on strength 
of trading. 

Neil 
Rodgers

SRRT 
- 6

External funding 
for growth / 
regeneration 
schemes

1. Pre-Brexit bids have been 
guaranteed. 2. Lobbying of LEP 
for future funding and 
investment.  

4 3 1. Seek alternative funding sources 
e.g. Homes England. 2. Consider the 
feasibility of utilising the Council's 
borrowing ability to finance key 
schemes. 

1. Linked to 
accelerated 
housing 
delivery 
programme 2. 
As dictated by 
project 
timescales 3. 
Quarterly 
monitoring

Mark Trillo SRRT 
- 9

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable 
adults – fulfilling 
our legal duty

1. Revised Joint Policy in place 
for Safeguarding Children and 
Vulnerable Adults. 2. Council is 
a member of the District 
Safeguarding Network (Staffs).3 
All staff have been briefed on 
the safeguarding policy and 
identified staff have received 
level 1 training in safeguarding 
children. 4. Training on adult 
safeguarding has been provided 
to key staff members. 

5 2 The Alliance Safeguarding Group 
meets quarterly to manage risks. All 
staff members receive training 
according to a rolling -programme 
linked to their level of risk. The 
Safeguarding Policy and actions are 
reviewed annually though a report 
to Elected Members

Ongoing

Neil SRRT Investment into Asset register on databases. 5 3 1. Implementation of the Assets 1. 01.04.2020 

P
age 48



ALT 
Owner 

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Rodgers - 12 council assets 
and long term 
planning

Ownership information within 
land terrier format. Capital 
spend identified broadly on 
MTFP only. 

Database (Concerto) has 
commenced and is being overseen 
by the Transformation Board. 
Priority data to be uploaded by 1st 
April 2020.  2. Condition survey 
specification to start once base data 
has been loaded into Concerto 
database. 3. Asset Management Plan 
(AMP) to be worked through to 
determine the level and extent of 
capital schemes and planned 
maintenance following the condition 
survey data. 

2. 01.09.2020  
3.    01.04.2021

Claire 
Hazeldene

SRRT 
- 15

Financial and 
Legislative 
impacts from 
world events 
e.g. Brexit

Keeping abreast of international 
developments from 
professional networks / sources

4 4 1. keep abreast of Brexit progress 
and respond to legislative impacts 
accordingly. 2. Treasury 
management strategy is regularly 
reviewed 3. Multi-agency emergency 
planning preparations and business 
continuity planning 4. Co-ordinated 
strategic COVID-19 response as part 
of declared major incident

1 and 2. 
ongoing 3. 
Regular comms 
with Local 
Resilience 
Forums 4. In 
place from 
March 2020

Andrew 
Stokes

SRRT 
- 17

Cyber risk and IT 
Security 

1. ICT security policy 2. Staff 
training (ICT Use 2018)  3. 
Annual health checks.  4. IT 
strategy infrastructure review 
completed and IT Infrastructure 
project completed. 5. 
Healthcheck completed March 
2020 with no issues. 6. 

4 3 1. Develop an IT / Digital Strategy 
providing direction for the alliance in 
the medium term 2. Regular training 
and communication updates 3. 
Socitm commissioned to do a 
strategic review, which will involve IT 
security arrangements and will 
inform the procurement of a new IT 

1. Strategy - 
June 2020 2. 
GDPR online 
training Spring 
2019. 3. IT 
Contract due 
October 2020

P
age 49



ALT 
Owner 

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Microsoft Licence audit 
completed, again with no 
compliance issues. 
Infrastructure health check 
underway - Sept 2019 7. New 
Microsoft Licensing Agreement 
in place. 8. Cyber security 
funding of £6k received from 
the IDEA in May 2020.                       

contract. NB Socitm review has been 
delayed due to CV-19.

P
age 50



Appendix B: Above Tolerance Operational Risks
Service Ref Risk Description 

(vulnerability)
Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Democratic 
and 
Community

DC1 Breach of equality 
regulations

1. Equality impact 
assessments undertaken                           
2.Equalities policy in place                                              
3. Equality impact has been 
written into the new project 
methodology currently being 
introduced.
4. Staff training programme 
delivered.
5. Monitor completion and 
quality of EIAs through the 
Mod Gov. system. EIA has 
been revised in Modern Gov 
Mar 2019.

4 3 Training for managers on 
Equality Impact Assessment 
and associated use of the 
Mod Gov report writing 
function. 

Q3 2020

Service 
Commission

W1 Contractor fails to 
fulfil contractual 
obligations (waste)

1. Shareholding and 
Commissioning Board meeting 
structure in place 2. Quarterly 
financial meetings held to flag 
up financial challenges. 3. 
Monthly Client meetings 
undertaken to monitor service 
delivery and performance. 4. 
Employees categorised as key 
workers.

4 3 1. Would bring service back 
in house (HP) and spot hire 
vehicles in short term if risk 
materialised. 2. Continuation 
of current controls. 3. Social 
distancing controls 
instigated by contractor, 
crews’ changes kept to 
minimum, crews travelling in 
separate vehicles, higher 
cleanliness measures, testing 
available to contractor as 
staff are key workers. 4. Staff 
from streets and parks (non 
priority) trained to be able to 
undertake and support 

Aug 2020

P
age 51



Service Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

waste collections. 5. 
Treatment issues at recycling 
facilities have arisen in 
recent weeks, contingency 
arrangements have been set 
up in response should they 
be required.

LE1 Major Contractor 
fails to fulfil 
contractual 
obligations (leisure)

1. Pre contract award supplier 
checks 2. Monthly client 
meetings to review operations 
3. Use of large operator 4. 
Quarterly financial statements 
from contractor/s.  

4 3 1. Monthly client meetings 
to monitor performance 2. 
Commissioning Board 
structure now in place to 
monitor contractor 
performance - two meetings 
per annum. 3. Contractor is 
invited to attend Scrutiny 
Committees at both councils 
annually to be challenged on 
performance issues. 4. 
Regular dialogue with 
supplier due to enforced 
gov't closure 5. Financial 
support package to be given 
by Councils during period of 
forced closures, new legal 
agreements to be developed 
to document roles and 
responsibilities 6. 
Consultancy support 
obtained via Sport England 
to help determine impact of 
operator failure on Councils 

Aug 2020

P
age 52



Service Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

in regards to liabilities and 
risk.

Finance and 
Procurement

FP1 Risk to income 
stream/budgetary 
overspend

1. Budget monitoring                                                            
2. Efficiency programme                    
3. Consider latest intelligence 
for budget reviews                        
4.Contingency reserve in place 

4 4 1. Ensure there is a provision 
in the General Fund on an 
annual review basis. 
2. Monitor budget position 
and target specific areas 
quarterly throughout the 
year- we are forecasting 
income losses on a range of 
income streams in regard to 
COVID: C Tax, B Rates, Fees 
& Charges. Possible to cover 
from reserves this year but 
there is a potential impact 
on the MTFP.                              
3. Resourcing of efficiency 
and transformation process 
via the Transformation 
Board monthly.

Ongoing continual 
process

P
age 53



Service Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

FP2 Pension Liability 
risk to budget

1. Monitoring of pension 
liability. 2. Careful 
consideration of pension cost 
implications when awarding 
contracts (externalisation of 
services). 3. Base budgets on 
latest intelligence. 4. Manage 
pressure through the Financial 
Planning process.   5. Close 
liaison with pensions authority                                                                
6. Careful workforce planning 

4 3 1. Flag up potential long 
term risks and manage 
carefully as part of the 
medium term financial 
planning process. A 
recession has been forecast 
which may impact pension 
returns and the workforce 
may be affected following 
income reductions etc.                                                            
2.The LGPS triennial 
valuation outcomes have 
been incorporated into the 
updated MTFP in Feb 2017.  
The next review will take 
place in 3 years.

1. Ongoing                                                                                                                                                                                      
2. Ongoing

FP3 Treasury 
Management 
failure(General)

1. Professional training of staff                           
2. Professional advice and 
support 3. Careful control of 
lending list including 
investment limits on 
institutions through formally 
adopted Treasury 
Management strategy.                
4. Full compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy's 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management

5 2 1. Carry out regular credit 
checks and react to latest 
developments in treasury 
management risk. 
Incorporate into the annual 
Treasury Management 
Strategy - reported to Full 
Council each February
2. Keep under review: the 
post COVID economy may 
impact banks (no evidence 
to suggest this yet) . The 
lending criteria we have in 
place should flag up early 
risk signs.

Ongoing continual 
process

P
age 54



Appendix C: Above Tolerance Project Risks
Project Ref Risk Description 

(vulnerability)
Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Accelerated 
Housing

AHD
P3

Planning approval 
not achieved on sites

All sites within the portfolio 
are part of Local Plan 
allocations and hence the 
principle of development is 
already identified. The council 
will seek to secure outline 
planning permission where 
appropriate to ensure 
certainty of delivery and 
maximise the land value. 
Planning application team is 
part of the project team and 
should advise on any relevant 
issue well in advance and 
ensure the plans follow HPBC 
design quality standards.

4 3 Exploring grant funding & equity 
share options with HCA to 
accelerate delivery. Discussions 
begun with adjacent landowners 
to ensure partnership approach 
to delivery and planning apps.  
March 2019 - portfolio sites being 
prepared for soft marketing 
testing exercise supported by HE. 
Ongoing engagement with 
adjacent landowners  Sept 2019 - 
Full engagement with DCC (as 
Highway authority) and HPBC 
planning to ensure all surveys and 
reports  required for planning are 
in place. Timescales for phasing 
of applications agreed.  Dec 2019 
- Planning application for 
roundabout  due to be submitted 
Jan 2020 March 2020 - Planning 
applications submitted, due for 
decision in June. Awaiting 
confirmation of committee 
processes.

Ongoing

P
age 55



Project Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Leisure 
Manag’ment

LE2 the impact of Covid 
19 has the potential 
to drastically affect 
the outcome of this 
review and the cost 
and deliverability of 
the project 
outcomes. Capital 
and revenue costs to 
the Council may also 
increase due to 
fundamental 
changes to the 
leisure operations 
and construction 
industries

Ensure leisure consultancy 
specification includes 
requirement to regularly 
monitor operational and 
financial performance of 
facilities against recovery 
trends relating to Covid19. 

4 4 1. Regular monitoring of 
operational and financial 
performance of facilities during 
consultancy phase against 
recovery trends relating to 
Covid19. 2. Liaison with national 
and local partners to ensure 
wider picture regarding impact 
on industry is well documented. 
3. Regular dialogue with the 
appointed consultants to ensure 
all impacts are captured as a 
result of the work being 
undertaken as much as is 
practical.

Dec 2020

GC1 Ground Conditions 
(potential 
contamination / 
habitat issues)

Site Surveys / environmental 
impact  to be carried out 
before contract award

5 2 Boreholes dug initial results 
indicate there is no current 
pollution from the cemetery. 
Further testing is required 
possibly over the next 6 months

2020Glossop 
Cemetery

GC5 Ground conditions 
may not be 
suitable/Bedrock too 
close to surface

Geo tech surveys have been 
ordered. Some taking place in 
Dec 2019 with some in Jan 
2020. Drainage surveys to also 
be carried out on existing 
deep drainage.

5 2 Full site survey required with 
Geo-Tech equipment. Initial 
surveys for bore-holes have 
indicated the presence of Bed-
rock but this has been at varying 
ground depths. These are to be 
undertaken Dec/Jan

2020

P
age 56



  Appendix D: Above Tolerance Opportunity Risks 
ALT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Impact Likelihood Fruition Plans Date
Strategic
Neil 
Rodgers

SRRO 
- 1

Housing Growth 1. Affordable Homes 
Programme. 2. Empty Homes 
Strategy in place. 3. Local Plan 
approved for High Peak. 4. 
Accelerated Housing Delivery 
Programme

5 3 1. Empty homes strategy 
implementation. 2. Focus on growth 
agenda through Local Plan delivery - 
realisation of Accelerated Housing 
Delivery Programme. 3. Work with 
Homes England to access funding to 
support housing growth.   

1. As per 
action plan 
timescales 2. 
Project 
timescales. 3. 
Underway 

Neil 
Rodgers

SRRO 
- 2

Business Growth 1. Growth Hub referrals. 2. 
County working e.g. 
participation in Derbyshire 
100% retention pilot for 
2018/19. 3. Provision of 
employment units 4. Business 
Newsletters advising of grant 
funding opportunities and 
training events to help 
businesses survive and 
flourish

5 3 1. Implement the accelerated business 
growth and employment programme. 2. 
Work with LEP partners to access vital 
funding to support business growth

1. As per 
project 
timescales 2. 
Ongoing as per 
individual 
scheme 
requirements

Claire 
Hazeldene

SRRO 
- 3

Council trading 
(commercialism)

1. Project underway within 
Income Generation stream of 
the Efficiency and 
Rationalisation strategy. 2. 
External support 
commissioned 3. Joint 
Ventures 4. Independent 
assessments of the alliance's 
commercial acumen 5. 
regional benchmarking around 
income generation

4 3 1. Development of commercial 
competency framework that underpins 
our Values, for use in recruitment and 
staff development 2. Income Generation 
project 3. Develop a Commercial 
Strategy and action plan 

1. 2020-21  2. 
as per project 
timescales  3. 
2020-2021

P
age 57



Claire 
Hazeldene

SRRO 
- 4

Effective 
contractor 
relationships

Current procurement and 
contract management 
arrangements

3 4 1. Greater focus on Council as 
commissioner.  2. Effective contract 
management arrangements that build 
up effective partnership arrangements.  
3. Focus on Contract Management 
within the Procurement Strategy

1. New 
Commissioning 
roles in place 
for AES phase 
2 As per CM 
actions on 
SRRT 5.  3. 
Procurement 
Strategy 
refresh in 2020

Operational
CLO1 Capitalising on 

the new 
operating model 
to grow the client 
base

These opportunities can be 
properly explored once the 
new structure has been 
implemented

4 5 Marketing, advertising and promotion Review in 2020Helen Core 
- Carelink

CLO2 Capitalizing on 
the new 
operating model 
to expand the 
range of services 
offered 

These opportunities can be 
properly explored once the 
new structure has been 
implemented

4 5 Marketing, advertising and promotion Review in 2020

Tanya 
Cooper

ODT
OR1

Efficiency 
opportunities 
arising from the 
implementation 
of new IT systems

IT strategy being evaluated to 
create a clearer picture of the 
way forward and the required 
actions

3 4 Background work around the IT strategy 
is being evaluated 

Q2

Projects
Neil 
Rodgers - 
Crescent

Cres
1

The Crescent 
project will off a 
significant 
contribution to 
the visitor 

Funding received for the 
development of a Visitor 
Economy Strategy for Buxton. 
Crescent Trust in place. Future 
High St Fund bid and Historic 

4 4 Visitor economy strategy agreed and 
meeting arranged with group of 
stakeholders to implement the 
destination management action plan. 
This formed the basis for the Future 

June-20

P
age 58



economy of the 
Peak District

High Street action zone bids 
both successful. 

High Street Fund bid for Buxton. Next 
stage submission is due by 5th June 
2020 (extended from April due to 
coronavirus).

Karen 
Lomas – 
Cust Portal

Port4 There is a huge 
opportunity to 
work with 
partners to 
increase levels of 
digital inclusion 
across the 
Alliance.

Established working 
relationships with external 
partners to help those that 
may feel digitally excluded, 
particularly via the CAB.

The installation of iPads / self-
serve equipment in reception 
areas. CGI are assisting the 
Alliance with compiling a 
digital strategy. This will bring 
digital to the forefront of 
everything that we do, and 
will be a living document 
communicated widely to all 
staff.

Business partners working 
with service areas to improve 
and increase services online. 
Floorwalkers introduced to 
reception areas to signpost 
and assist with self serve.

4 3 Review the 'triage' process each quarter 
to ensure that the correct messages are 
being given to vulnerable residents.

Support staff by carrying out monthly 
monitoring sessions with individuals to 
support them through the early phase 
of OneVu launch.

Re-iterate the self serve message 
through weekly training sessions. 
Guidance notes and training to be 
placed on the CS procedures intranet 
page.

Partnership working with Citizens 
Advice has increased, in light of UC. This 
should help the Alliance to support 
vulnerable residents with digital 
services.
June 2020 - continue to work closely 
with partners internally and externally 
to improve and increase the availability 
of online services

Monthly

Quarterly

July 2017 
onwards

Ditto

ongoing

Nicola 
Kemp – 
Leisure 

L1 Management of 
the sites by one 
contractor 
delivers financial 
efficiencies to the 

Report of financial outcomes 
will be shared by the provider. 
Provider has increased control 
in regards to setting of 
charges for service delivered; 

4 5 Annual review of charges and financial 
position assessed by Client.

June 2020

P
age 59



Alliance. proposals to change such must 
be approved by the Client.

5 Off site hosting Benefits of hosted solution 
evaluated 

2 5 Outcomes and work packages to be 
defined in project plan post June

Jul-20Claire 
Hazeldene 
– Civica 
Pay

2 Savings 
generated by 
embedding 
payments into 
digital 
transformation

Building an understanding of 
payment trends. 

2 5 Undertake payment cost analysis across 
all channels. Complete customer 
profiling / user research. Investigate 
cessation of cheque and payment card 
facilities.

June 2020

Sarah 
Porru - 
HAZ

1 Opportunity to 
access funding to 
address the 
condition of 
heritage buildings 
on the high st

The level of funding from HE is 
significant and will provide the 
opportunity for a major 
injection of capital into the 
High Street. The funding will 
provide a grant funding 
programme available to 
owners of historic properties 
to enhance these. There will 
be a positive impact on the 
high street and retention of 
the council's reputation to 
deliver heritage led 
regeneration projects. There 
will be opportunities for 
cultural and community 
engagement projects.

4 4 1. Building condition survey to assess 
current condition and grant projects
2. Launch the scheme and publicity
3.Recruit Project Officer
4.Set up governance structure and grant 
giving body
5.Monitor and evaluate

Sept 2020

Nicola 
Kemp – 
Enhanced 
Trading

1 New income 
streams identified

Project  Management 
Methodology applied 

3 4 Managed through the Transformation 
Programme

Ongoing

P
age 60



1 Opportunity to 
develop a 
committed 
community group 
who will take 
ownership of the 
recreation area

Play inspections occur 
regularly by staff

4 3 Regular contact with community group 
members to encourage support for the 
project and establish community 
ownership of the play area site.

Target dates 
unknown due 
to impact of 
pandemic

2 Opportunity to 
support a 
community group 
to access further 
external funding 
to enhance the 
site

There are limited funding 
options available to local 
councils

4 3 Explore funding opportunities that may 
be available that are appropriate to the 
site and can easily be accessed by the 
community group

Target dates 
unknown due 
to impact of 
pandemic

Mark Trillo  
– Whitfield 
play area

3 Opportunity for 
promoting 
physical activity 
with a range of 
external partners

The limited facility in situ 
currently limits physical 
activity opportunities

4 3 The installation of the new play area will 
promote interest from the local 
community will provide a solid 
foundation for us to build upon and 
encourage activity opportunities and 
extended use of a well managed open 
space

Target dates 
unknown due 
to impact of 
pandemic

  

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Information 
Digest

To: Audit & Regulatory Committee
Date: 3 July 2020

2019/20 Internal Audit Periodic Report February 2020 
to June 2020
Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 Audit Reports Issued Between 1st 

February 2020 and 30th June 2020
Appendix 2 Internal Audit 2019/20 Progress 
Information as at 30th June 2020
Appendix 3 2018/19 Audit Recommendations 
Implementation

Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance

John Leak
Head of Audit

Page 63

Agenda Item 6



1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee note the progress information contained within this report.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise performance information for the 
Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2019/20 financial year. This includes a 
breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, the number and 
classification of recommendations made, agreed and where applicable, 
implemented by management.

3.2 Due to a combination of unplanned investigative work and the effects of the 
Covid-19 pandemic including diversion of audit resources to support the 
corporate response to the administration of the Governments various business 
grants support schemes, the Audit Plan for 2019/20 has taken longer than 
usual to complete, however all of the audits in progress or nearing completion 
will be completed soon. In addition, the follow up of audit recommendation 
implementation was temporarily paused until 31st May. This lack of data 
collection is reflected in this report but is expected to return to normal levels 
over the coming months

3.3 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 43% (see 
paragraph 5.4.2) of 2019/20 audit recommendations that are due have been 
implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and 
not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be 
noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money.

ANDREW P STOKES
Acting Chief Executive

Page 64



Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

None John Leak
Head of Audit
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
01538 395400 Ext 4098

Page 65



5. Detail

5.1 Introduction

5.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise performance information for the 
Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2019/20 financial year. This includes a 
breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, the number and 
classification of recommendations made, agreed and where applicable, 
implemented by management.

5.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual risk 
assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2019/20 was agreed by this 
Committee at the 6th June 2019 meeting. The Internal Audit service also carry 
out work outside of the audit plan for which a contingency is usually built in. 
This unplanned work consists mainly of internal control consultancy work and 
special investigations into suspected fraud and irregularity.

5.2 Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations

5.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st February 2020 to 
30th June 2020 is shown in the table below. Further details of these audits 
outlining key issues and strengths and improvements are shown in Appendix 
1.

RecommendationsService Audit
High 
Risk

Medium 
Risk

Low 
Risk

Assurance

Regeneration Tourism 0 0 3 Satisfactory

Environmental 
Health

E.H Licensing 0 1 3 Satisfactory

Environmental 
Health

Food Safety 0 0 2 Substantial

Customer 
Services

Hybrid Mail 0 2 7 Satisfactory

Service 
Commissioning

AES Contract 
Management

0 2 2 Satisfactory

Finance Sundry Debtors 0 0 4 Satisfactory

Finance Treasury 
Management

0 1 2 Satisfactory

Finance Payroll 0 0 7 Satisfactory

Finance General Ledger 0 0 2 Substantial

Page 66



RecommendationsService Audit
High 
Risk

Medium 
Risk

Low 
Risk

Assurance

Finance Budgetary 
Control

0 0 0 Substantial

5.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed during the 
current financial year including the current status of audit recommendations is 
detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to 
date 43% (see paragraph 5.4.2) of 2019/20 audit recommendations that are 
due have been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been 
identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be 
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such 
cases. It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to 
implement agreed recommendations.

5.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation 
being allocated a risk, every audit completed has been given an ‘assurance 
opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control 
environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control 
environment. The control levels are defined as follows:

Control Level Definition
Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve 

the objectives and controls are consistently applied.
Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the most 

part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in the 
design or inconsistent application of controls within a few 
areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk.

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance 
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the 
system objectives at risk.

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of 
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse 
or error.

5.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous financial 
year 2018/19 implemented to date. This information will keep Councillors 
informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year audit 
recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation of some 
previous year recommendations will fall into 2019/20 and beyond depending 
on when the audit was carried out so this appendix will show when those 
recommendations become due for implementation. In due course, all 
recommendations will fall due and it will be possible to clearly identify which 
recommendations have not been implemented.

Page 67



5.2.5 To date 93% of 2018/19 audit recommendations that are due have been 
implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and 
not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases.  It should be 
noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations.

5.3 Audits In Progress

5.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table below.

Service Audit Status
Assets Parking Audit Complete. Management response.

Housing Carelink Audit Complete. Quality control stage.

Assets Housing Planned 
Maintenance

Audit Complete. Quality control stage.

Finance Recovery Audit Complete. Quality control stage.

Finance AES Governance Audit in Progress.

Development 
Services

Development 
Control

Audit in Progress.

Revenues & 
Benefits

Council Tax Audit in Progress.

Finance Creditor 
Payments

Audit in Progress.

Revenues & 
Benefits

NNDR Audit in Progress.

Revenues & 
Benefits

Housing Benefits Audit in Progress.

5.4 Progress against Audit Plan

5.4.1 The 2019/20 financial year had seen steady progress against planned audits 
up until early March 2020. However due to a combination of unplanned 
investigative work and the Covid-19 pandemic which resulted in disruption to 
services and additional workloads, work on ongoing planned audits slowed 
considerably. In addition considerable audit resource in the first quarter of 
2020/21 was diverted to support the corporate response to the administration 
of the Governments various business grants support schemes. As a result the 
Audit Plan for 2019/20 has taken longer to complete, however all of the audits 
in progress or nearing completion as detailed in 5.3 above will be completed 
soon and it is anticipated that a satisfactory year end position will be achieved.

Page 68



5.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table, 
excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated. In order to help services to 
adjust to additional workloads and disruption following the shift to home 
working from the end of March, the follow up of audit recommendation 
implementation was temporarily paused until 31st May. This lack of data 
collection is reflected by the figure shown in the table below and in Appendices 
2 and 3, however this is expected to return to normal levels over the coming 
months:

Summary Progress Information to 30th June 2020
Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially completed 75%
Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 15%
Number of recommendations made (including unplanned work) 154
Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service Managers 
(including unplanned work)

100%

Percentage of recommendations implemented within agreed 
timescale (including unplanned work)

43%*

* See paragraph 5.4.2

5.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating controls exist 
or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency of the current system 
for the benefit of service delivery.

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1st FEBRUARY 2020 &
30th JUNE 2020

Tourism
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 KPI’s are measured via the Council’s 

Performance Monitoring Framework using 
the STEAM (Tourism Economic Impact) 
tourism reports.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Ticket Sales 1
Partnerships 2
Total 3

Page 71



APPENDIX 1

Environmental Health Licensing
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Licence renewals should only come into 

force on the date of a satisfactory inspection 
being carried out.

 Licences reviewed had been charged the 
correct fee, and inspections did not take 
place until after payment had been 
received.

 All licences had been appropriately 
authorised.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Renewals & Interim Inspections 1 1
Record Keeping 2
Total 1 1 2

Page 72



APPENDIX 1

Food Safety
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Performance Indicator ‘% of high risk 

premises (A-C) inspected per annum’ has 
achieved its 100% target rate for several 
years; and Performance Indicator ‘% of 
Food Premises compliant with the Food 
Standards Agency criteria’ has likewise 
achieved in excess of 98%. 

 The Service and Enforcement Plan 2019/20 
was approved in early 2020. 

 From a sample of 10 food establishments 
per authority, all were inspected within the 
timescale required; details were recorded 
on the Flare system; and inspection 
outcomes and required actions were clearly 
communicated with the proprietor.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Export Health Certificates 1
Interdepartmental Liaison 1
Total 2

Page 73



APPENDIX 1

Hybrid Mail
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The provision of print and postal services  

should be formally documented within a 
signed agreement.

 Savings on print consumables, leasing of 
printers/copiers etc.

 Freeing up of Customer Service support 
from distribution of mail to support front line 
duties.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Contractual Documentation 2 1
Invoicing 1 2
Fault Logs 1
System Access 1
Project Rollout 1
Total 2 2 5

Page 74



APPENDIX 1

AES Contract Management
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Periodic checks should be undertaken by 

the contract manager to confirm 
compliance with the contract terms and 
conditions, with such checks being 
recorded in an inspection report, signed by 
both parties and where necessary remedial 
action agreed.

 Sample checking of the performance data 
submitted by AES should be undertaken to 
ensure it is supported by documentary 
evidence (e.g. system reports) and 
accurately calculated.

 Comprehensive signed agreements exist 
for the provision of services by AES.

 Payments made to AES for the provision of 
services are appropriately authorised and 
checked to ensure they are in accordance 
with the agreed terms of the contract.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Contract Management 1 1
Complaints 1
Performance Indicators 1
Total 2 2

Page 75



APPENDIX 1

Sundry Debtors
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The suspense account is cleared on a 

regular basis.
 Regular reconciliations are carried out to 

ensure that income is correctly posted 
within the key financial systems. 

 An appropriate segregation of duties is in 
place between staff responsible for raising 
debtors and accounting for income.   

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Invoice Raising 1
IT Security 1
Unallocated Cash 1
Credit Note Raising 1
Total 4

Page 76



APPENDIX 1

Treasury Management
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 All Bankline transactions should be 

authorised in a timely manner in 
accordance with the authorised signatory 
listing and Financial Regulations and 
Procedure Rules.

 The Treasury Management Strategy is 
updated and reviewed annually and 
performance is regularly reported to 
committee.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Financial Procedure Rules 1
Bankline 1 1
Total 1 2

Page 77



APPENDIX 1

Payroll
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The majority of payroll amendments are 

now carried out in-house by the Payroll 
Officer.

 A good working relationship is in place with 
the Payroll service provider, Stoke-on-Trent 
City Council.

 Payroll data is reconciled monthly by a 
member of staff independent of the Payroll 
Section.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Establishment 1
Payroll Processing 4
MyView System Access 1
Honorarium Payment 1
Total 7

Page 78



APPENDIX 1

General Ledger
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The end of year bank reconciliation was 

carried out promptly and found to be in 
balance and supported with adequate 
working papers.

 Integra suspense items are cleared out 
promptly.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Year End Closedown Timetable 1
PARIS Suspense Account 1
Total 2

Page 79



APPENDIX 1

Budgetary Control
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Budgets were reported to Committee in 

accordance with the budget setting 
timetable, and the overall budget position is 
monitored throughout the year.

 Regular bespoke Financial Reports have 
been made available to budget holders.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

None
Total

 

Page 80



APPENDIX 2
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2019/20 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 30th JUNE 2020

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS

Regulatory Added 
value

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Assets & Facilities 9 1 0 0 0 4 4 0 6 6 0 Satisfactory
Housing Rents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Civica SharedServices Data 
Breaches

7 0 0 0 0 4 4 4 3 2 2 Limited

Health & Safety 7 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 8 6 5 Satisfactory
BACS Transmissions 5 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 3 3 0 Satisfactory
Sickness & Time Management 10 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 11 11 3 Satisfactory
Bank Contract 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 Substantial
Housing Right to Buy 10 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 11 1 1 Satisfactory
Housing Tenancy Allocation 7 0 0 0 0 3 3 2 4 3 3 Satisfactory
Taxi Licensing 5 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 6 6 0 Satisfactory
Safeguarding 7 2 0 0 0 2 2 2 7 7 6 Satisfactory
Procurement 12 3 0 0 0 2 2 0 13 12 3 Satisfactory
Insurance 4 2 0 0 0 1 1 0 5 0 0 Satisfactory
Member Services 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 Satisfactory
Parking Management Response
Tourism 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 Satisfactory
Pavilion Gardens Contract Mngmt 7 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 5 1 1 Satisfactory
Environmental Health Licensing 2 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 0 0 Satisfactory
Food Safety 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 Substantial
Hybrid Mail 4 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 7 0 0 Satisfactory
Carelink Quality Control Stage
AES Governance Audit in Progress
AES Contract Management 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 Satisfactory
Housing Planned Maintenance Quality Control Stage
Sundry Debtors 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 Satisfactory
Treasury Management 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 Satisfactory
Development Control Audit in Progress
Recovery Quality Control Stage
Council Tax Audit in Progress
Creditor Payments Audit in Progress
Payroll 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 Satisfactory
NNDR Audit in Progress
General Ledger 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 Substantial
Budgetary Control 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Housing Benefits Audit in Progress
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 154 0 31 123
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 0 0 22 9 61 27

Key:
Risk Class
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.

Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures. 

Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Added 
Value

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer.

Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision.

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2018/19 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS IMPLEMENTATION

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS

Regulatory Added 
value

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Pest Control & Animal Welfare 8 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 9 9 9 Satisfactory
VAT 7 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 7 7 4 Satisfactory
Housing Rents 2 2 0 0 0 2 2 2 2 2 2 Satisfactory
Commercial Properties 10 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 10 10 7 Satisfactory
Media & Communications 5 3 0 0 0 1 1 1 7 7 7 Satisfactory
Leisure Contract Management 9 2 0 0 0 2 2 2 9 9 9 Satisfactory
Transparency Code 2015 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 2 Satisfactory
Markets 3 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 3 3 3 Satisfactory
Community Safety 5 2 0 0 0 3 3 3 4 4 4 Satisfactory
Housing Agency 7 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 7 7 6 Satisfactory
On-line Payments & Misc Income 6 6 0 0 0 1 1 1 11 11 11 Satisfactory
Electoral Registration 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 11 11 Satisfactory
Building Control 12 3 0 0 0 5 1 1 10 1 1 Limited
Ethics & Culture 4 5 0 0 0 1 1 1 8 8 5 Satisfactory
Enforcement 9 2 0 0 0 3 3 3 8 8 8 Satisfactory
Risk Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 Substantial
ICT Asset Management 7 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 7 7 7 Satisfactory
Pollution 11 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 14 10 Satisfactory
Capital Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Sundry Debtors 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5 Satisfactory
Housing Stock Management 3 0 0 0 0 2 2 1 1 1 1 Satisfactory
Housing Repairs & Maintenance 10 2 0 0 0 3 1 1 9 8 8 Satisfactory
Budgetary Control 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Purchasing Cards 8 3 0 0 0 2 2 2 9 9 9 Satisfactory
Treasury Management 5 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 3 3 3 Satisfactory
NNDR 4 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 3 3 3 Satisfactory
General Data Protection Regulation 23 2 0 0 0 4 3 3 21 20 20 Satisfactory
Council Tax 10 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 8 8 8 Satisfactory
Creditor Payments 3 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 2 2 2 Satisfactory
Payroll 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8 8 Satisfactory
Housing Benefits 13 3 0 0 0 3 3 3 13 13 13 Satisfactory
Housing Strategy 10 1 0 0 0 2 2 1 9 9 9 Satisfactory
Recovery 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5 Satisfactory
General Ledger 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 274 0 46 228
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 0 0 39 36 216 201

Key:
Risk Class
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.

Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures. 

Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Added 
Value

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer.

Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision.

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21
 

Item June
 2020

Sept
 2020

Dec
 2020

Feb
 2021 Details 

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit Progress Report    
Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key 
performance information.

Annual Audit Plan  To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan.

Internal Audit Annual Report 
To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control environment.

Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA 
To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s system of internal audit.

Internal Audit Charter 
To consider updates to the formal document that 
defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. (as required)

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Audit Committee Update 

A summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that the Committee may wish to 
consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the 
audit – where not covered by other items on the 
agenda.

Audit  Plan  
Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit 
consider as part of their work, the audit approach and 
the result of any interim work

Audit Findings Report 
To consider the external auditor’s report to those 
charged with governance on issues arising from the 
audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion.

Annual Audit Letter 
To consider the external auditor’s annual report on 
their overall assessment of the Council.

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
To consider the risk assessment and understanding of 
management processes.

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 7



Item June
 2020

Sept
 2020

Dec
 2020

Feb
 2021 Details 

FINANCE

Statement of Accounts 
To review and approve the Council’s annual 
Statement of Accounts.

Treasury Management Update    
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management position to date and the projected 
outturn.

Annual Treasury Management Report 

To recommend to Council for approval the annual 
Treasury Management Report summarising 
performance and compliance with the Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators.

Treasury Management Strategy  
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy.

CORPORATE

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
To review and approve the Annual Governance 
Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation 
process and supporting evidence.

AGS Progress Against Action Plan 
Report on progress made against the actions raised 
as part of the previous years Annual Governance 
Statement process.

Risk Management Update  
Report on developments in the Council’s risk 
management arrangements.

Risk Management Strategy 
Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial 
February)

Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
To consider updates to the Council’s Counter Fraud 
& Corruption Strategy. (as required)

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy 
& Procedures 

To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures. (as 
required)

Whistleblowing Policy 
To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing 
Policy. (as required)

Corporate Governance  Review of corporate governance arrangements.

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Agree Programme of Work     To agree future work programme of A&R Committee.

Review of Effectiveness of A&R Committee 
inc. Terms of Reference 

To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of 
the Audit & Regulatory Committee and the A&R 
Committee’s Terms of Reference.

P
age 86


	Agenda
	1 Annual Treasury Management Report 2019/20
	2 Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2020/21
	Appendix 1

	3 Audit Plan (External Audit)
	4 Treasury Management Update
	5 Risk Management Update
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 Work Programme

